
 

 

 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 
March 10, 2015 

5:01 PM @ CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of 

Intent to Speak” card to the Recording Secretary. 

II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 

III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held February 10, 2015, at 5:01 

p.m. 

2 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission Special Meeting held on March 24, 

2015, at 5:01 p.m. 

IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – McCarthy McCollough, from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to 

“City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac), for property located at 1505 West Kelly 

Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-0000-00-003) 

2. CHANGE OF ZONING – McCarthy McCollough, from “County” A-1 (Agriculture) 

to “City” AG (0-1 du/5 ac) (Agriculture) and RCE-1 for property located at 1505 

West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-0000-00-003) 

3. 2015-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Various owners and properties within 

the City of Apopka from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG (1 du/5 ac)  

1



Page 2 
 

 

V.     SITE PLANS: 

1. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Rock Springs Estates, owned by 

Rock Springs Estates; applicant is Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E.; 

engineering firm is Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, 

P.E., located south of West Lester Road, east of Vick Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 3-

20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003) 

2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – Ponkan Reserve North, owned by Clyde 

Marie Brown, c/o Donna L. Helton; engineer is June Engineering Consultants, 

Inc., c/o Jeffrey A. Sedloff and Jimmy Dunn; and the property is located at 301 

Ponkan Road.  (Parcel ID Nos. 21-20-28-0000-00-003; 21-20-28-0000-00-004; 

28-20-28-0000-00-003; 28-20-28-0000-00-004) 

VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 

VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT: 

 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

2



Page 3 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held February 10, 2015, at 5:01 

p.m. 

  

3



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 10, 2015, 

AT 5:01 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Steve Hooks, James Greene, Mallory Walters, Teresa Roper, Robert Ryan, and 

Pamela Toler 

 

ABSENT:   Melvin Birdsong, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Andrew Hand, Esq., R. Jay Davoll, P.E. - Community Development 

Director/City Engineer, David Moon, AICP - Planning Manager, Sam Ruth - City Commissioner, James J. 

Sheremeta, Alan Spencer, Les Hebert, Tara Tedrow, Greg Wilfong, Greg Ripple, Suzanne Kidd, and 

Jeanne Green – Community Development Department Office Manager/Recording Secretary. 

 

OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Chairperson Hooks called the meeting to order and called for a 

moment of silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 

 

INTRODUCTION – Jay Davoll, P.E., Community Development Director/City Engineer, introduced 

Andrew Hand.  Mr. Hand is an attorney with City Attorney Cliff Shepard’s law firm, Shepard, Smith and 

Cassady, P.A. He will likely be attending all of the Planning Commission meetings to direct and support 

the Commission. 

 

Mr. Hand stated that he would be attending the meetings to represent the Planning Commission.  He 

stated that he will be scheduling training for the Commission to go over quasi-judicial procedures, the 

Sunshine Law, and other basic issues.  He said he does refresher training every year with the Boards he 

represents.  He said the refresher training keeps everything working efficiently.  He said the training 

session will most likely be with Cliff Shepard and himself.  He said he is a board certified specialist in 

Local Government Law. 

 

The Commission welcomed him to the meeting and expressed their appreciation for his continued 

involvement. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Chairperson Hooks asked if there were any corrections or additions to the 

January 13, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. minutes.  With no one having any corrections or additions, he asked for a 

motion to approve the minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held on January 13, 2015, at 5:01 

p.m. 

 

Motion:      Mallory Walters made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from 

the January 13, 2015, meeting at 5:01, and James Greene seconded the motion.  Aye 

votes were cast by Steve Hooks, James Greene, Teresa Roper, Robert Ryan, Pamela 

Toler, and Mallory Walters (6-0). 

                                
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – J. 
LESLIE AND NANCY HEBERT – David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated this is a request to 
recommend approval of the Small Scale Future Land Use amendment from “County” Rural (01- du/10 ac) 
to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) for the property owned by Leslie and Nancy Hebert. The property 
is located south of West Kelly Park Road, east of Golden Gem Road at 3600 West Kelly Park Road.  The 
existing and proposed use is a single-family residence.  The existing maximum allowable development is 
1 Unit and the proposed maximum allowable development is 2 Units.  The tract size is 6.11 +/- acres. The 
staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes. 

4



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 10, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 2 

 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 17, 2014, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2395.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the 

owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be 

processed as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Rural Settlement is compatible with the 

designations assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 6.11 acres. The 

property owner intends to use the site for a residential development.    

 

The subject site is located within one (1) mile of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use Plan. If future 

development should be proposed for this property that exceeds current allowable uses, a Future Land Use 

Amendment and zoning application must first be approved by the City consistent with the Wekiva 

Parkway Vision Plan. 

  

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the Rural Settlement Future Land Use 

designation and the City’s proposed AG Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the 

intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

The proposed rezoning will not result in an increase in the number of residential units which could be 

developed at the subject property.  A capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary 

because the impacts on schools will be de minimus.  

 

The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The 

City properly notified Orange County on January 9, 2015. 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to 

“City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) for the property owned by Leslie & Nancy Hebert. 

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting.  

 

Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 

Hooks closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion: James Greene made a motion to recommend approval of the Small Scale Future Land 

Use Amendment from “County” Rural (01- du/10 ac) to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 

du/5 ac)  for the property owned by Leslie and Nancy Hebert located at 3600 West 

Kelly Park Road, and subject to the information and findings in the staff report.  

Motion seconded by Mallory Walters. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, James 

Greene, Teresa Roper, Robert Ryan, Pamela Toler, and Mallory Walters (6-0). 

 

5



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 10, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 3 

CHANGE IN ZONING – LESLIE AND NANCY HEBERT – Mr. Moon stated this is a request to 
recommend approval of the Change of Zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” AG for the property owned by 
Leslie and Nancy Hebert. The property is located south of West Kelly Park Road, east of Golden Gem 
Road at 3600 West Kelly Park Road.  The existing and proposed use is a single-family residence.  The 
existing maximum allowable development is 1 Unit and the proposed maximum allowable development is 
2 Units.  The tract size is 6.11 +/- acres. The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes. 
 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 17, 2014, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2395.  The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding 
area and the subject parcels are vacant.  The applicant has requested the AG zoning to assure that the 
property can be developed as a single-family residence and meet site and access requirements, and be 
compatible with surrounding nature of development. The zoning application covers approximately 6.11 
acres. The property owner intends to use the site for a single-family home. 
 
The subject site is located within one (1) mile of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use Plan. If 
future development should be proposed for this property that exceeds current allowable uses, any 
development plan would be required to meet policies set forth in the comprehensive plan related to the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use Plan, including Policy 20.4, which requires development plans to 
meet the development standards of an adopted form-based code for the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support 
this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
The proposed AG rezoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land Use Designation of Rural 
Settlement (up to one unit per five acres) for this property.   Minimum lot size for property assigned the 
AG zoning category is 5 acres.   
 
The proposed rezoning will not result in an increase in the number of residential units which could be 
developed at the subject property.  A capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary 
because the impacts on schools will be de minimus.  
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The 
City properly notified Orange County on January 9, 2015. 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-1 
to “City” AG for the parcel owned by Leslie & Nancy Hebert. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Hooks closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion: Mallory Walters made a motion to recommend approval of the Change of Zoning 

from “County” A-1 to “City” AG for the property owned by Leslie and Nancy 
Hebert, located at 3600 West Kelly Park Road, and subject to the information and 
findings in the staff report.  Motion seconded by Teresa Roper. Aye votes were cast 
by Steve Hooks, James Greene, Teresa Roper, Robert Ryan, Pamela Toler, and 
Mallory Walters (6-0). 

 
6



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 10, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 4 

TIME-LIMITED MORATORIUM FOR LAND USE AMENDMENTS, ZONING CHANGES AND 

DEVELOPMENT ORDERS FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED WITHIN THE PROPOSED 

OCOEE-APOPKA ROAD OVERLAY DISTRICT – Mr. Moon stated In March 2014, the City 

commenced a small area study for an area covering approximately 4.4 square miles in the vicinity of 

Ocoee Apopka Road. Completion and expansion of the State Road 429, 414, and 451 tollway system, 

together with proposed construction of the Florida Hospital Replacement Medical Campus, have and will 

generate immediate and increased pressure to develop higher density residential, commercial, and 

industrial uses within the Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study boundaries.   To better manage growth 

and development consistent with the desired land use patterns and development standards that will emerge 

from the Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study, a temporary moratorium is proposed and will sunset on 

October 31, 2015.  The moratorium grants City Council authority to waive the moratorium if a proposed 

development application is determined to meet the intent of the current draft development guidelines. 

 

Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.    

 

In response to questions by Ms. Walters, Mr. Moon stated the proposed ordinance’s development 

standards will address compatible types of uses within the small area overlay district.  There are five 

character zones that include the gateway zone, the new market area, the residential areas, and the research, 

technology and education zones.  Within each of those will identify what is compatible land uses. For 

example in the new market area, where the hospital is proposed, there will likely be language that requires 

any new funeral home to be so many feet away from the hospital or a barbeque restaurant because of the 

smoke it generates.  The design guidelines will also address the physical form of development in the area 

such as the architectural design of the buildings.  The Planning Commission will get the opportunity to 

make comments on those types of decisions.  However, the standards can’t be too specific to discriminate 

against any certain type of businesses.  There will likely be exclusionary language in terms of distance 

requirements or performance standards. 

 

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Moon agreed that is the whole purpose of the 

moratorium.  To allow enough time for the development of the development design guidelines and 

provide an opportunity for the Planning Commission and City Council to participate in the development 

of those guidelines. 

 

Alan Spencer, 1367 Alston Bay Boulevard, Apopka, stated his concerns regarding the traffic and 

development impacts to his and surrounding neighborhoods with all the proposed development in the 

area.   

 

Chairperson Hooks stated that by adopting a temporary moratorium on development in the Ocoee Apopka 

Road Study Area will allow the City time to put in place development standards that will address issues 

like the traffic and development impacts. 

 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Hooks closed the public hearing.  

 

Motion: James Greene made a motion to recommend approval of the Time-Limited 

Moratorium for Land Use Amendments, Zoning Changes and Development Orders 

for properties located within the proposed Ocoee-Apopka Road Overlay District.  

Motion seconded by Pam Toler. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, James Greene, 

Teresa Roper, Robert Ryan, Pamela Toler, and Mallory Walters (6-0). 

7



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 10, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 5 

PLAT – SAM’S CLUB – Mr. Davoll stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Plat for the 

Sam’s Club #6189-00 owned by Sam’s East, Inc.  The engineering firm is Kimley-Horn and Associates, 

Inc., c/o Greg Ripple, P.E.  The property is located south of U.S. 441, west of North Hiawassee Road, and 

east of Lake Pleasant Road. The existing use and proposed use is the Sam’s Club #6189-00 retail center 

under construction. The future land use is Commercial and the zoning is C-2.  The tract size is 33.3 +/- 

acres.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this 

meeting. 

 

The Sam’s Club #6189-00 Final Development Plan was approved on September 18, 2013.  A condition of 

this Final Development Plan approval requires “approval and recording of a plat prior to issuance of a 

certificate of occupancy.”   To accommodate the land design needs for the Sam’s Club site plan, a land 

swap was made between the City and the property owner to accommodate relocation of the City’s 

stormwater pond and a drainage easement.  Lot 2 shown in the Plat establishes the boundary of the 

property owned by the City.   The Plat is consistent with the Final Development Plan. 

 

The Development Review Committee recommended approval of the Sam’s Club #6189-00 Plat for the 

property owned by Sam’s Inc. East and located south of U.S. 441, west of North Hiawassee Road, subject 

to the information and findings in the staff report. 

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

In response to questions by Ms. Toler, Mr. Davoll stated that the reason the retention pond was moved 

from the previous location on the site was to accommodate the location of the Sam’s Club building.  

Without moving the retention pond the building could not be built.  Sam’s has extended the stormwater 

pipes to the new retention pond location.   

 

In response to a question by Ms. Walters, Mr. Davoll stated that the gas pumps will be located on the 

northeastern side of the property along US 441 and North Hiawassee Road. 

 

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Davoll stated that the small, triangular piece of 

property along US 441 is for sale and is currently in unincorporated Orange County.  The owner said he 

will probably eventually annex into the City. 

 

Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 

Hooks closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion:   Mallory Walters made a motion to recommend approval of the Plat for Sam’s Club 

#6189-00 Plat owned by Sam’s East, Inc., subject to the information and findings in 

the staff report.  Teresa Roper seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve 

Hooks, James Greene, Teresa Roper, Robert Ryan, Pam Toler, and Mallory Walters 

(6-0). 

 

TRAINING SESSION – Mr. Moon asked the Commission if they would like to have the workshop at a 

regularly scheduled meeting or would they rather have a special meeting?  

 

The consensus of the Commission was to have the training session at a regularly scheduled meeting. 

8



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 10, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 6 

 

OLD BUSINESS:  

 

Planning Commission – None. 

 

Public - None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:      

 

Planning Commission:  None. 

 

Public - None.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:29 p.m. 

 
 

 

 

Steve Hooks, Chairperson 

 

 

 

 

R. Jay Davoll, P.E. 

Community Development Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
G:  \Shared\4020\ADMINISTRATION\PLANNING COMMISSION\Minutes\2015\02-10-15 

9



Page 10 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission Special Meeting held on March 24, 

2015, at 5:01 p.m. 

  

10



 
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 24, 
2015, AT 5:01 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Steve Hooks, James Greene, Teresa Roper, Robert Ryan, and Pamela Toler 
 
ABSENT:   Melvin Birdsong, Mallory Walters, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Glenn Irby – City Administrator, R. Jay Davoll, P.E. - Community Development 
Director/City Engineer, David Moon, AICP - Planning Manager, Kalanit Oded, Esq., Jim Hanson – Woolbright 
Wekiva, LLC, and Jeanne Green – Community Development Department Office Manager/Recording Secretary. 
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Chairperson Hooks called the meeting to order and called for a moment of 
silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
MASTER SIGN PLAN – WEKIVA RIVERWALK – EAST SEMORAN BOULEVARD – David Moon, 
AICP, Planning Manager, stated this is a request for approval of the Master Sign Plan for the Wekiva Riverwalk 
Plaza located north of East Semoran Boulevard and west of South Wekiwa Springs Road. The owner is 
Woolbright Wekiva, LLC, c/o Jim Hanson. The existing use is a multi-tenant plaza. The future land use is 
Commercial and the zoning is C-1.  The tract size is 24.74 +/- acres.  The staff report and its findings are to be 
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
The Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza Master Sign Plan includes existing and proposed signage for their site.   Through 
the proposed Master Sign Plan, no existing signage is required to be removed.  The applicant agrees to forfeit 
certain types of signs to allow three anchor signs to temporarily appear on the secondary sign.  All existing signs 
appear within the Master Sign Plan package.  Any existing non-conforming signs will be meet current sign code 
requirements when replaced.   
 
Master Sign Plan Conditions: 
 

1. Secondary Monument Sign.    No more than three (3) anchor business signs may be displayed on the 
secondary monument sign (Wekiva Springs Road) on a temporary basis as shown within Exhibit “A” 
and shall only be provided for Marshalls, Ross and Bed, Bath & Beyond as shown in Exhibit “A”.  Such 
business sign shall not be replaced if the business closes and leaves the Wekiva Riverwalk shopping 
plaza.  Should any of these three businesses change their corporate name to another due to merger, 
rebranding, etc., the sign appearing on the secondary monument sign, as shown in Exhibit “A” shall be 
removed and cannot be replaced.   At such time the business name is removed from the monument sign, 
it shall not be replaced by any other another business. The shopping plaza name shall remain on the 
secondary monument sign. 

 
2. To meet the intent of the sign ordinance, the Master Sign Plan for Wekiva Riverwalk  Plaza shall not be 

allowed to use or shall have limited use of the following sign types until such time as all three temporary 
business signs  (Marshalls, Ross and Bed, Bath & Beyond) are permanently removed from the secondary 
monument sign: 

 
a. Electronic reader boards are not allowed within the any monument sign along Semoran Boulevard. 
 
b. Human signs are limited to not more than two (2) permits per year for any business within the 

Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Plaza.    Prior to issuance of a human sign permit by the City, the 
business must obtain a letter of authorization from the shopping plaza landlord and include such 
letter within their sign permit application.  

 
c. No portable trailer signs shall be allowed for any business within the Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping 

Plaza.  
 
 11



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 24, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 

 

 2 

3. At the time the movie theater vacates the Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza, the current movie pole\pylon sign 
along Semoran Blvd. shall be permanently removed by the shopping plaza owner.  Said pole\pylon sign 
shall not be replaced. 

 
4. All tenant and anchor wall signs affixed to a store front of the Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza at the time of the 

Master Sign Plan approval shall conform to the sign code standards when replaced due to significant 
damage or to accommodate a new sign face, or when an electrical permit application for such sign is 
submitted to the City.  

 
5. The Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza landlord shall enforce these Master Sign Plan conditions through its lease 

agreements with all tenants. 
 
Through the Master Sign Plan, the applicant is requesting that three anchor business signs be temporarily 
allowed temporarily an existing secondary monument sign. In exchange for this deviation from the sign code; 
the shopping plaza owner agrees to forfeit the ability to install any electronic reader board on any future 
monument sign; limit the number of human signs allowed for any shopping plaza business to two permits per 
year  instead of the allowed three; and forfeit the use of temporary trailer sign, so long as one of the temporary 
anchor signs remains on the secondary monument sign (Ross, Marshalls; and Bed, Bath & Beyond) 
 
In granting approval of the Master Sign Plan for Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza, the City of Apopka finds: 
 

1. The Master Sign Plan for the Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza has been submitted and reviewed by staff.  The 
Development Review Committee does not object to the master sign plan as proposed subject to the 
Master Plan Conditions of Approval appearing in the staff report. 
 

Planning Commission has authority to render a final decision on this Master Sign Plan.  The existing multi-
tenant shopping center and associated plaza and tenant signage are in place.  
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 
part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
City planning staff does not object to the to approve the Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza, Master Sign Plan, subject to 
the condition set forth in the staff report. 
 
In response to concerns expressed by the Commission members having to do with when a store leaves and their 
name is removed from the sign, Mr. Moon stated that a requirement will be added that once the name is 
removed, the remaining names on the signs needs to be rebalanced and the sign repainted. 
 
In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Moon stated that the code does not allow snipe signs. If 
the snipe signs are in the right-of-way, Code Enforcement Officers will remove them.  If the snipe signs are on 
private property the Code Enforcement Officers will notify the property owner that they need to remove those 
signs. 
 
Ms. Roper expressed concerns regarding the “Wekiva Riverwalk” plaza name being smaller than the anchor 
store names on the sign.  She stated that people who are specifically looking for “Wekiva Riverwalk” and not 
necessarily the anchor stores, they may not be able to see the name on the sign. 
 
Jay Davoll, P.E., Community Development Director/City Engineer, stated that the signs along Semoran 
Boulevard will be larger than the secondary monument sign. 
 
Jim Hanson, Woolbright Wekiwa, LLC, Rio Pinar Plaza, 401 S Chickasaw Trail, Orlando, FL 32825, in 
response to Ms. Roper’s concern, stated that the sign contractor, Guy Wingo, will be painting the sign black so 
that the names will stand out.   
 12



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 24, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 

 

 3 

Mr. Hanson stated that with regard to why they are requesting approval of their sign master plan, based on 
approvals received by the City in 2013, Woolbright Wekiva LLC went into negotiations with Ross

®
 as an 

anchor store at Wekiva Riverwalk.  As a part of the contract, it was agreed that a Ross
®
 sign would be installed 

along the right of way.  When they approached the City this year for the permits they were denied the permit 
because the sign did not meet the current sign code.  After discussions with City staff it was agreed that 
Woolbright would prepare a Master Sign Plan that, if approved, would meet the code requirements. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Ryan, Mr. Moon stated that if there is a change in any of the signs that meet the 
requirements in the Master Sign Plan, it would not have to come back to the Planning Commission for review. 
 
Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson Hooks 
closed the public hearing. 
 
Ms. Oded arrived at 5:35. 
 
Motion:    James Greene made a motion to approve the Master Sign Plan for the Wekiva Riverwalk 

Plaza owned by Woolbright Wekiva, LLC and located north of East Semoran Boulevard 
and west of South Wekiwa Springs Road, subject to the following Master Sign Plan 
Conditions: (1) Secondary Monument Sign.    No more than three anchor business signs 
may be displayed on the secondary monument sign (Wekiva Springs Road) on a temporary 
basis and shall only be provided for Marshalls, Ross and Bed, Bath & Beyond.  Such 
business sign shall not be replaced if the business closes and leaves the Wekiva Riverwalk 
shopping plaza.  Should any of these three businesses change their corporate name due to a 
merger, rebranding, etc., the sign appearing on the secondary monument sign shall be 
removed.  At such time the business name is removed from the monument sign, it shall not 
be replaced by any other another business name. The shopping plaza name shall remain on 
the secondary monument sign. Once the anchor store sign is removed, the sign is to be 
rebalanced and repainted; (2) To meet the intent of the sign ordinance, the Master Sign 
Plan for Wekiva Riverwalk  Plaza shall not be allowed to use or shall have limited use of 
the following sign types until such time as all three temporary business signs  (Marshalls, 
Ross and Bed, Bath & Beyond) are permanently removed from the secondary monument 
sign: [a] Electronic reader boards are not allowed within the any monument sign along 
Semoran Boulevard. [b] Human signs are limited to not more than two permits per year for 
any business within the Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Plaza.    Prior to issuance of a human 
sign permit by the City, the business must obtain a letter of authorization from the 
shopping plaza landlord and include such letter within their sign permit application, and, 
[c]  No portable trailer signs shall be allowed for any business within the Wekiva Riverwalk 
Shopping Plaza.  (3) At the time the movie theater vacates the Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza, the 
current movie pole\pylon sign along Semoran Blvd. shall be permanently removed by the 
shopping plaza owner.  Said pole\pylon sign shall not be replaced. (4) All tenant and 
anchor wall signs affixed to a store front of the Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza at the time of the 
Master Sign Plan approval shall conform to the sign code standards when replaced due to 
significant damage or to accommodate a new sign face, or when an electrical permit 
application for such sign is submitted to the City; and (5) The Wekiva Riverwalk Plaza 
landlord shall enforce these Master Sign Plan conditions through its lease agreements with 
all tenants; and to the information and findings in the staff report; and Teresa Roper 
seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, James Greene, Teresa Roper, 
Robert Ryan, and Pamela Toler (5-0). 

OLD BUSINESS:  
 
Planning Commission – None. 
 
Public - None. 13



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 24, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 

 

 4 

 
NEW BUSINESS:      
 
Planning Commission:  None. 
 
Public - None.  
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:37 p.m. 

 
 

 

 

Steve Hooks, Chairperson 

 

 

 

 

R. Jay Davoll, P.E. 

Community Development Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 
G:  \Shared\4020\ADMINISTRATION\PLANNING COMMISSION\Minutes\2015\02-24-15SP 

14



Page 15 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – McCarthy McCollough, from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to 

“City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac), for property located at 1505 West Kelly 

Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-0000-00-003) 

  

15



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 10, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 
SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 08-20-28-0000-00-003 
 

Request:   COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE 
    FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
    FROM: “COUNTY” RURAL (0-1 DU/10 AC) 
    TO:  “CITY” RURAL SETTLEMENT (0-1 DU/5 AC) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: McCarthy McCollough 
 
LOCATION: North of W Kelly Park Road, east of Foliage Way 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-family home 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family home 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City”  AG and RCE-1 and  (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment request 

is being processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map designation 
from “County” A-1 to “City” AG (6.44 acres)  & “City” RCE-1 (2 acres).) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   8.44 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 Unit 
    PROPOSED: 2 Units 
 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief   

 
 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Small Scale\2015\McCarthy McCollough FLU PC 03-10-15 
 16



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 17, 2014, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2395.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the 

owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed 

as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Rural Settlement is compatible with the designations 

assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 8.44 acres. The property owner 

intends to use the site for a residential development. The applicant intends to split the lot, contingent upon 

future land use and rezoning approvals, and sell approximately two (2) acres of the existing subject property for 

an additional single-family residence.   Residential development of the two acres parcel will require connection 

to central water and sewer. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Rural Settlement Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed AG and RCE-1 Zoning 

classifications.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The impact on the number of residential units under the proposed rezoning 

will be de minimus and, therefore, a school capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on February 6, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

March 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

March 18, 2015- City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

April 1, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 20, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

March 20, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

March 27, 2015 – ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee meets on March 4 and the recommendation will be presented to the 

Planning Commission at its March 20 meeting.  

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

17



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) A-1 (ZIP) Mobile Home/Vacant Land 

East (City) Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) A-1 (ZIP) Single-family home 

South (City) 

South (County) 

Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 

A-1 (ZIP) 

A-1 

Vacant Land 

Mobile Home 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Manufactured home 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of 
agricultural uses and rural county estate residential.  The property lies north of West Kelly Park Road and east 
of Foliage Way.  
  

 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area: No 

 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 

October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the Northern Area of the Joint Planning area.   

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basing Study Area, 

the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the 

adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 

reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 

Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 

following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features present on the northeast portion of the subject property. 

 

 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts West Kelly Park Rd.  The vegetative 

communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and 

the terrain has a 5-12 percent slope. 

 

 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.s Rural 

Settlement Residential Future Land Use designation. 18



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

 

 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land 

use designation for the Property is Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac).  Based on the housing element of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   

 

CALCULATIONS: 

ADOPTED (City designation): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 

PROPOSED (City designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 6 persons 

 

 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 

is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  The subject site has access to Kelley Park Road, which is a 

major collector road. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  392 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A GPD/Capita; 

 177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 19



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    210 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  420 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes           

 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  12 lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  24 lbs./person/day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 mil. GPD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 mil. GPD 20



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.009 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.018 AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

21



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

McCarthy McCullough 
8.44 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 2 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural (0-1/10 ac) 

To: “City” Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County” A-1 
To: “City” AG & RCE-1 

Parcel ID #s: 08-20-28-0000-00-003 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

  

Subject 
Property 

22



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

23



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 24



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

25



Page 26 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. CHANGE OF ZONING – McCarthy McCollough, from “County” A-1 (Agriculture) 

to “City” AG (0-1 du/5 ac) (Agriculture) and RCE-1 for property located at 1505 

West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-0000-00-003) 

  

26



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 10, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Zoning Change Map  
           Site Survey 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT:   MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 08-20-28-0000-00-003  
 

Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM: “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) 
    TO:  “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE) (6.44 AC) AND 
      “CITY” RCE-1 (RESIDENTIAL) (2.0 AC) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: McCarthy McCullough  
 
LOCATION:   North of W Kelly Park Road, east of Foliage Way (1505 W Kelly Park Rd.) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-family home 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) (Note: this Change of Zoning amendment request is 

being processed along with a request to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation from “County” Rural to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac)). 

 
ZONING:   “County” A-1 (Agriculture) 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING:   AG (min. lot area of five acres) and RCE-1(mi. lot area of one acre) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Existing and new single-family home 
 
TRACT SIZE:   8.44 +/- acres total 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 2 Residential Units 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Dir.     Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.    Police Chief   
 

G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\REZONING\2015\McCarthy McCullough\McCarthy McCollough – 1505 W. Kelly Park Rd – ZON – PC 03-10-15 27



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 17, 2014, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2395.   A survey of the proposed lot split is provided with the support information.  The smaller 
proposed lot abutting Kelley Park Road is two acres and the applicant request RCE-1 zoning for this portion of 
the property.  The minimum lot area for RCE-1 is one acre. However, a portion of the front of this parcel as well 
as the access portion of the parcel zoned AG will likely be acquired for right-of-way when Kelley Park Road is 
widened from 60 feet to up to 120 feet. In such case, the remaining portion of the RCE-1 parcel will meet the 
minimum lot size. 
 
The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and the subject parcel 
contains an existing.  The applicant has requested the AG zoning to assure that the property can be developed as 
a single-family residence and meet site and access requirements, and be compatible with surrounding nature of 
development. The zoning application covers approximately 8.44 acres.   The portion of the property proposed to 
be zoned RCE-1 is located adjacent to Kelley Park Road.  The property owner intends to use both parcels a 
single-family home but desires to retain the larger parcel for agriculture use.  Access to the larger rear parcel 
will occur through a flag-lot. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 
zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed AG & RCE-1 rezoning is consistent with the 
proposed Future Land Use Designation of Rural Settlement (up to one unit per five acres, maximum density of 
one unit per acre) for this property.   Minimum lot size for property assigned the AG zoning category is 5 acres, 
and the minimum lot size for property assigned the RCE-1 zoning classification is 1 acre.   
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The impact on the number of residential units under the proposed rezoning 

will be de minimus and, therefore, a school capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on February 6, 2015. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
March 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
March 18, 2015- City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
April 1, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
February 20, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 20, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee meets on March 4 to review and the recommendation will be presented 
at the March 10 meeting.   
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

  

28



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) A-1 (ZIP) Manufactured Home/Vacant Land 

East (City) Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) A-1 (ZIP) Single-family home 

South (City) 
South (County) 

Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 
Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 

A-1 (ZIP) 
A-1 

Vacant Land 
Mobile Home 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Manufactured home 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a major collector roadway (W 

Kelly Park Road).  The zoning application covers approximately 8.44 acres 
as follows: Parcel 1 will comprise 6.44 acres and Parcel 2 will comprise 2.00 
acres.  The property owner intends to split the property into two lots for two-
single family residences. 

COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG  and RCE-1zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural 

Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) Future Land Use category and with the character of 
the surrounding area and future proposed development.  Per Section 2.02.01, 
Table II-1, of the Land Development Code, AG & RCE-1 zoning is one of 
the acceptable zoning districts allowed within the Rural Settlement Future 
Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density 
allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres. 

Minimum Lot Width None 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 25 ft. 

 Side: 25 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 
Based on the above zoning standards, the existing 6.44-acre portion of the 
subject parcel complies with code requirements for the AG district. 
 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and other similar 

uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property lines. Apiaries shall be locat-
ed 200 feet from any property line. All other yard setbacks shall be a minimum of 
25 feet from the property line. 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Office building and accessory buildings in conjunction with commercial 
agriculture uses for packing, shipping, and storage purposes. Commercial 
wholesale foliage plant production nursery, tenant dwellings, for year-round 
employees, on the basis of one dwelling unit for each five acres of land, provided 
such dwellings are accessory to the principal use of land. Livestock barns and 
stables, crops and animal production and the buildings and structures necessary to 
support such production, as well as kennels. Single-family dwellings, including 
mobile homes, and their customary accessory structures and uses in accordance 
with article VII of this Code. Apiaries. 

29



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

RCE-1 DISTRICT 

REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 2,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 1 acre (43,560 sq. ft.) 

Minimum Lot Width 130 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 35 ft. 

 Rear: 30 ft. 

 Side: 15 ft. 

 Corner 35 ft. 

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the proposed split of 2 acres from the 

subject parcel complies with code requirements for the RCE-1 district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Proposed residential subdivisions shall provide a minimum six-foot high 

brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external road-

ways, erected inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape 

materials shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the 

buffer wall.  The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 

percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between 

solid columns.  The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall 

have a stone, brick or decorative block finish.  Where wrought iron is used, 

additional landscape materials and irrigation may be required.  This will be 

determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 

 Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a minimum 

five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or decorative 

block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives are submitted for approv-

al. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses 

in accordance with article VII of this code.  Guest/granny quarters in 

accordance with article VII of this code. 

  

30



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
McCarthy McCullough 

8.44 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 2 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural (0-1/10 ac) 

To: “City” Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County” A-1 
To: “City” AG (6.44 ac) & RCE-1 (2.0 ac) 

Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-0000-00-003 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

  

Subject 
Property 

31



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

ZONING CHANGE MAP 
  

AG 

RCE-1 

32



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

SITE SURVEY 
 

  

33



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 
 

 

  

34



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 35



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCULLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

 

36



Page 37 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. 2015-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – Various owners and properties within 

the City of Apopka from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG (1 du/5 ac)  

  

37



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 10, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: “A” A-1 Cases Spreadsheet 

“B” Zoning Reports 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT:   2015-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
     
Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM:   “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP)  
    TO:          “CITY” AG (1 DU/5 AC)  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
The 39 parcels, comprising a total of 316.8+/- acres, have been annexed into the City of Apopka and have been 
assigned Future Land Use designations compatible with the proposed AG zoning designation.  All subject 
properties currently have a City Future Land Use Designation of Rural Settlement (RS) or Agriculture (AG) and 
a County zoning category of either A-1 or A-2 assigned to them. A summary of each zoning case is provided in 
Exhibits “A” and “B”.  Exhibit “A” describes parcels currently assigned a “County” A-1 zoning category. 
 
 All Cases (“County A-1”) 
 Total # of Parcels:       38 
 Total # of Property Owners:    23  
 Total Acreage:     298.41 
 
 
One parcel was pulled because the current zoning does not match those included within Cycle 2 Administrative 
Rezonings.  The numbers above remove this case.  Exhibit “A” shows this parcel deleted.  The attached exhibits 
provide a summary of each proposed zoning amendment.   Each property owner has been notified via a letter 
sent certified mail that a zoning category comparable to the County designation will be assigned to their 
property.  An individual zoning report has been prepared for each zoning case.  All zoning reports are provided 
in Exhibit “B”. 
 
Pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement between the City and Orange County (2004), policy of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan (Policy 3.9) and State law (s 163.3202, F.S.), the City is required to assign a zoning 
category to lands that are annexed into the City’s jurisdiction.  To comply with these requirements, city staff is 
recommending that the City assign a zoning category that is most compatible to the current zoning category that 
was assigned by Orange County. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The impact on the number of residential units under the proposed rezoning 

for each case will be de minimus and, therefore, a school capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not 

necessary 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City notified Orange County on February 6, 2015.   
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Rezoning\2015 Administrative Rezoning\1 2015-2 Administrative Rezoning PC 03-10-2015 

38



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 
2015-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

March 10, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

April 1, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 

April 14, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2
nd

 Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 20, 2015 – Public Hearing Notice 

April 3, 2015 - Ordinance Heading Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-1 to 

“City” AG as set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B” for the properties described therein. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 

39



EXHIBIT "A" 
2015-2 Administrative Rezoning Properties 

From "County" A-1 (ZIP) to "City" AG 

Case # Parcel ID Name Mailing Address Acreage FLU 
Current 
Zoning 

Proposed 
Zoning 

Existing Use 

 

2015-2-1 11-20-27-0000-00-054 Always Growing Trees, Inc. 6318 Nightwind Cir, Orlando, FL 32818-8833 20.07 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Ornamental nursery 

2015-2-2 11-20-27-0000-00-031 Chester S. Peckett Trust 15815 Acorn Cir, Tavares, FL 32778-9447 1.18 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Container Nursery 

2015-2-2 11-20-27-0000-00-032 Chester S. Peckett Trust 15815 Acorn Cir, Tavares, FL 32778-9447 9.90 RS A-1(ZIP) AG 
Container nursery and manufactured 
home 

2015-2-2 11-20-27-0000-00-043 Chester S. Peckett Trust 15815 Acorn Cir, Tavares, FL 32778-9447 1.86 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Container nursery 

2015-2-2 11-20-27-0000-00-052 Peckett Family Trust 15815 Acorn Cir, Tavares, FL 32778-9447 6.86 RS A-1(ZIP) AG 
Container nursery and manufactured 
home 

2015-2-3 24-20-27-0000-00-099 Christopher Johnson 1952 Township Road 1095, Ashland, OH 44805-9421 10.00 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Manufactured Home 

2015-2-4 09-20-28-0000-00-009 David & Sue Hill P. O. Box 1358, Sorrento, FL 32776-1358 1.38 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Container nursery 

2015-2-4 09-20-28-0000-00-015 David & Sue Hill P. O. Box 1358, Sorrento, FL 32776-1358 1.46 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

2015-2-4 09-20-28-0000-00-031 David & Sue Hill P. O. Box 1358, Sorrento, FL 32776-1358 1.48 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Container nursery 

2015-2-5 09-20-28-0000-00-029 Donald & Debra Kirkland 6220 Mt Plymouth Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5226 1.59 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

2015-2-6 09-20-28-0000-00-013 DRK Inc 6220 Mt Plymouth Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5226 4.05 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Container nursery 

2015-2-7 09-20-28-0000-00-030 Earl Gaylon Ward Estate P. O. Box 506, Apopka, FL 32704-0506 0.13 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Vacant Residential 

2015-2-8 05-20-28-0000-00-004 Franklin & Jacqueline King 1816 S Eola Dr, Orlando, FL 32802-4010 4.01 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Grazing 

2015-2-8 05-20-28-0000-00-018 Franklin & Jacqueline King 1816 S Eola Dr, Orlando, FL 32802-4010 9.23 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Grazing 

2015-2-9 09-20-28-0000-00-025 J and L Gardenias, Inc. 6336 Mt Plymouth Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5363 1.99 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Container nursery 

2015-2-10 05-20-28-0000-00-030 James & Linda King 1707 Haas Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5219 1.27 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

2015-2-10 05-20-28-0000-00-038 James & Linda King 1707 Haas Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5219 3.99 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Grazing 

2015-2-11 05-20-28-0000-00-032 Joseph & Donna Cox 1689 Haas Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5219 8.11 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Manufactured Home 

2015-2-12 06-20-28-0000-00-028 Kenneth & Harvey Morris 2121 Haas Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5127 4.14 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

40



EXHIBIT "A" 
2015-2 Administrative Rezoning Properties 

From "County" A-1 (ZIP) to "City" AG 

Case # Parcel ID Name Mailing Address Acreage FLU 
Current 
Zoning 

Proposed 
Zoning 

Existing Use 

 

2015-2-12 06-20-28-0000-00-030 Kenneth & Harvey Morris 2121 Haas Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5127 5.23 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Grazing and manufactured home 

2015-2-12 06-20-28-0000-00-044 Kenneth & Harvey Morris 2121 Haas Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5127 5.18 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Grazing and manufactured home 

2015-2-12 06-20-28-0000-00-062 Kenneth & Harvey Morris 2121 Haas Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5127 14.93 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Grazing and manufactured home 

2015-2-13 05-20-28-0476-00-090 Patricia Bartlett 1118 Crown Isle Circle, Apopka, FL  32712-2913 3.69 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

2015-2-14 24-20-27-0000-00-076 Project Orlando LLC 1900 Summit Tower Blvd, Ste 820, Orlando FL 32810-5951 11.17 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Non-Ag vacant acreage 

2015-2-15 09-20-28-0000-00-028 Robert Brantley 121 Lakeshore Dr, Altamonte Springs, FL  32714-1914 4.23 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Warehousing 

2015-2-16 05-20-28-0000-00-006 Rockwood Groves LLC c/o H. N. Roth, P. O. Box 770249, Winter Garden, FL 34777-0249 101.49 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Timberland 

2015-2-17 09-20-28-0000-00-020 Shirley Dobbs 6444 Mt Plymouth Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5228 0.91 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

2015-2-18 06-20-28-0000-00-015 T O Mahaffey Jr P. O. Box 1147, Sorrento, FL 32776-1147 2.49 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

2015-2-18 06-20-28-0000-00-059 T O Mahaffey Jr P. O. Box 1147, Sorrento, FL 32776-1147 30.03 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Field nursery and grazing 

2015-2-19 24-20-27-0000-00-109 William M Duval Trust P. O. Box 549 Plymouth, FL 32768-0549 2.59 RS A-1(ZIP) AG Container Nursery 

2015-2-20 08-20-28-0000-00-005 John & Joanne Ault 1411 W Kelly Park Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5206 7.99 AG A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

2015-2-21 17-20-28-0000-00-018 Donald & Kathleen Smithers 1564 W Kelly Park Rd, Apopka, FL 32712-5208 6.14 AG A-1(ZIP) AG Manufactured Home 

2015-2-22 22-21-28-0000-00-190 Beverly Safier 2205 Clarcona Rd, Apopka, FL 32703-7917 1.33 AG A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

2015-2-23 27-21-28-0000-00-056 Donald & Donna Thomas 353 Foggy Creek Rd, Davenport, FL  33837-5776 4.34 AG A-1(ZIP) AG Manufactured Home 

2015-2-24 18-20-28-0000-00-053 Phillip & Peggy Dionne 4700 Jason Dwelley Pkwy, Apopka, FL 32712-6058 10.12 AG A-1(ZIP) AG Single-family home 

 

41



 
 

2015-2 Administrative Change of Zoning 
298.41 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 
From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) (21,780 sq. ft. min. lot) 

To: “City” AG (Agriculture) (5 acre min. lot) 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING CASES LOCATION MAP 

 

42



CASE 

REPORTS 

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



Page 228 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Rock Springs Estates, owned by 

Rock Springs Estates; applicant is Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E.; 

engineering firm is Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, 

P.E., located south of West Lester Road, east of Vick Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 3-

20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003) 

  

228



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

     X     PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 10, 2015 

             SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM: Community Development 

             PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

      X    OTHER:  Preliminary Dev. Plan      Site Plan 

           Landscape Plans 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES 

LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST LESTER ROAD, EAST OF VICK ROAD 

 

Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN FOR ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST 

LESTER ROAD, EAST OF VICK ROAD 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 
OWNER:   Rock Springs Estates, LLC  
 
APPLICANT:   Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E. 
 
PROJECT ENGINEER: Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of West Lester Road, east of Vick Road. 
 
EXISTING USE:  One (1) single family residence/vacant land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Low Suburban (Max. 3.5 du/ac) (Residential) 
 
ZONING:   R-1 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single-family Residential Subdivision (60 Lots; min. 8,000 sq. ft. lot area) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   25.84 +/- acres 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION:      
 
Mayor Kilsheimer  Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)           HR Director         City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby           IT Director         Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director           Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Subdivision\Rock Springs Estates\1 Rock Springs Estates PDP – PC 03-10-15 

 229



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE # 2 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City)  Res. Low Suburban (0 -3.5 du/ac) R-1/ZIP Vacant Land/SFR 

East (City) Res. Low R-2 SFR 

South (County) Low Density Res. (Max. 4 du/ac) A-2 World of Life Church of Apopka 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Wekiva Crest Subdivision 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5.0 du/ac) R-3 Cambridge Commons Subdivision 

 
Project Use:  The Rock Springs Estates Preliminary Development Plan proposes the development of 60 single 
family residential lots and a 0.42 acre park.  The minimum typical lot width is 75 feet with a minimum lot size 
of 8,000 square feet.  The proposed minimum living area for the subdivision is 1,500 square feet as set forth in 
Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code.      
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 
Front* 25’ 
Side 10’ 
Rear 20’ 
Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 
 
Access:  Ingress/egress for the development will be via full access from West Lester Road.  A second road 
connection is proposed at the southeast corner of the project.  Extension of this second road will occur at the 
time the abutting eastern parcel is developed for residential use.  A multi-use trail currently runs along the south 
side of Lester Road.  The landscape buffer tract along Lester Road has taken into consideration the presence of 
this multi-use trail. 
 
Stormwater: The two (2) retention ponds have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 
requirements. 
 
Recreation: The developer is providing a 0.42 acre (18,200 sq. ft.) tot lot and recreation area.  At the time of the 
final development plan application, details of active and passive recreation equipment and facilities will be 
submitted for the City’s review. The park will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association.   
 
Buffer/Tree Program:  Buffers are provided consistent with the Land Development.  The City’s Land 
Development Code and Tree Bank policy authorize the City Council to require the applicant to make a 
contribution to the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining tree inches for the residential section. The 
Applicant has committed to pay $10.00 per deficient tree inch (totaling $580.00) into the Tree Bank prior to 
issuance of the initial Arbor/Clearing permit. 
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
 
Total inches on-site:  1,042 
Total number of specimen trees: 8 
Total inches removed:  602 
Total inches retained: 440 
Total inches replaced:  544 
Total Inches (Post Development): 984 230



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE # 3 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency 

mitigation agreement or letter has been approved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this 

agreement. 

 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 
rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 
on adjacent parcels.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
March 10, 2015 - Planning Commission, 5:01 p.m. 
March 18, 2015 - City Council, 7:00 p.m.  
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN, subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

231



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE # 4 
 

Application:  Rock Springs Estate Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan 
Owner:  Rock Springs Estates, LLC  
Applicant:  Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E. 
Project Eng.:  Donald W. Mcintosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E. 
Parcel ID Nos:    33-20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003 
Total Acres:  25.84 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

Subject 

Property Property 

232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



  

240



 

 

  

241



 

 

  

242



 

 

243



Page 244 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – Ponkan Reserve North, owned by Clyde 

Marie Brown, c/o Donna L. Helton; engineer is June Engineering Consultants, 

Inc., c/o Jeffrey A. Sedloff and Jimmy Dunn; and the property is located at 301 

Ponkan Road.  (Parcel ID Nos. 21-20-28-0000-00-003; 21-20-28-0000-00-004; 

28-20-28-0000-00-003; 28-20-28-0000-00-004) 

  

244



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

   

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING      MEETING OF: March 10, 2015 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM:  Community Development  

       PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map  

  X  OTHER: Final Dev. Plan/Plat       Final Dev. Plan/Plat 

           Landscape Plan 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PROJECT:   PONKAN RESERVE NORTH FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN\PLAT 

       

Request:   RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN/PLAT 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:    Clyde Marie Brown, c/o Donna L. Helton 
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER:  June Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
     c/o Jeffrey A. Sedloff and Jimmy Dunn 
 
LOCATION:   301 Ponkan Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 21-20-28-0000-00-003, 21-20-28-0000-00-004; 28-20-28-0000-00-003 & 

28-20-28-0000-00-004  

 
FUTURE LAND USE:   Mixed Use (max. 2 du/ac per Policy 3.5, Future Land Use Element) 
 
ZONING:    Mixed Use CC (max. 2 du/ac per Policy 3.5, Future Land Use Element) 
 
EXISTING USE:   Single Family Home, Manufacture Home and Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE:   Single Family Residential Subdivision (51) Lots 
     Min. Lot Size: 12,500 sq. ft.  Min. Lot Width: 95 ft. 
                Min. Living Area (house): 2,500 sq. ft. 
 
TRACT SIZE:    25.5 +/- Acres  
 
DENSITY:    Existing: 2 units per gross acre 
     Proposed: 2 units per gross acre 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Director  
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk    
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief  
Community Dev. Dir.                Police Chief 
 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\SUBDIVISION PLANS\Ponkan Reserve North\1 Ponkan Reserve North FDP PC 03-10-15 245



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

PONKAN RESERVE NORTH SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 2 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Estates (0-1 du/ac) R-1AA Vacant Land 

East (City) Office PO/I Duke Energy Regional Center 

South (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AA Vacant Land/Ponkan Reserve South 

West (City) Residential Estates (0-1 du/ac) PUD Rock Springs Ridge Subdivision 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

Project Use:  The Ponkan Reserve North Final Development Plan proposes the development of 51 single family 

residential lots and a 0.57 acre park.  The park will serve this residential community and will be owned and 

maintained by the homeowners association. 

 

The minimum typical lot width is 95 feet with a minimum lot size of 12,500 square feet.  The proposed 

minimum living area for the subdivision is 2,500 square feet as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land Development 

Code.     The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front 30’ 

Side 10’ 

Rear 35’ 

Corner 25’ 

 

Access:    Ingress/egress for the development will be via Ponkan Road with a future connection to the parcel 

located to the east of the site.  A Transportation Impact Study has been submitted and reviewed by the City.  No 

substandard issues were identified by the report.  A twenty-foot wide tract of land (Tract “G”) has been reserved 

for future road right-of-way to allow for an expansion of Ponkan Road. 

 

Stormwater:  The two (2) retention ponds have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 

requirements. 

 

Recreation: The developer is providing a 0.57 acre (25,000 sq. ft.) active and passive recreation area.  

Recreation facilities and equipment will be proposed with the Final Development Plan application.  

 

Environmental: A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of this study, 

The developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior to 

commencing any site construction activity regarding protection and relocation of any identified protected 

species. 

 

Building Architecture:  Exterior elevations of all proposed homes must be reviewed by the Community 

Development Department prior to issuance of a building permit.  Exterior home elevations must meet the intent 

of the City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

 

 246



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

PONKAN RESERVE NORTH SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 3 

 

Section 2.20.B.29., Land Development Code, establishes that new development must meet residential garage 

design standards that are applicable to the mixed use zoning district.  This standard requires single-family 

residential development with lots 75 feet or greater to provide a mixture of garage types; and that no more that 

50 percent of the lots shall be of a single garage type.  Garage types include front-entry, recessed by ten feet, 

side-entry, detached, rear-entry.  At the time building elevations are provided, the home builder must 

demonstrate that a diversity of garage types will be provided consistent with Section 2.20.B.29. 

 

Buffer and Landscaping:  A ten-foot landscape tract (Tract “B” and “C”) with a six-foot high brick wall is 

provided along Ponkan Road with a subdivision sign at the entrance.  The brick wall will extend across all of 

Tract “B” and Tract “C” except for the area of Tract “B” fronting the Tract “A” stormwater pond.  The 

applicant requests that the portion of the buffer tract in front of the stormwater pond occur as a wrought-iron 

style fence with a brink posts. 

 

Buffers are provided consistent with the Land Development Code.  

 

Abutting the eastern boundary of Ponkan Reserve North is a field office and operations center for Duke 

Energy’s local service facility.  A buffer wall is not located along the western boundary of the Duke Energy 

property.   A screen wall is not required by the Land Development Code, and screen wall is not proposed by 

within the Preliminary Development Plan.  Future homeowners will have the option to install a fence along their 

rear lot lines. 

 

Tree Program: 

The following is a summary of the tree replacement program: 

 

Total inches on-site:     8,665 

Total number of specimen trees:     19 

Total inches removed:    4,590 

Total inches retained:    4,043     

Total specimen inches retained:    752 

Total inches required:    3,885 

Total inches replaced:    1,005  

Total inches post development: 5,058 

 

Based on the number of tree inches preserved and additional tree inches replaced, a tree mitigation fee is not 

required for this project. 

 

All preserved trees shall be protected during lot construction and grading.  Appropriate tree barricades shall be 

installed around each tree or group of trees along the tree drip line.  A detail of the tree protection barrier shall 

be included within the Final Development Plan. 

 

WAIVER REQUEST 
A six-foot brick wall is required within Tract “B” landscape buffer in front of the Tract “A” stormwater pond.  

In lieu of a solid brick wall in front of the stormwater pond, a wrought-iron style, brick post fence will be 

provided.  The remaining areas of Tract “B” will contain a solid brick wall. 

   

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency 

mitigation agreement has been approved by OCPS.  A school mitigation agreement has been accepted by OCPS 

and is currently in the process of being executed and recorded. 
247



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

PONKAN RESERVE NORTH SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 4 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

March 10, 2015 - Planning Commission, 5:01 p.m. 

March 18, 2015 - City Council, 8:00 p.m. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the PONKAN RESERVE NORTH – 

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT, and a Waiver to allow a wrought-iron style/brick post fence in lieu of 

a solid brick wall in front of Tract “A” stormwater pond, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation: The role of the Planning Commission for this development 

application is to advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with 

the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code.     

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  

248



PLANNING COMMISSION – MARCH 10, 2015 

PONKAN RESERVE NORTH SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 5 

 

Clyde Marie Brown, c/o Donna L. Helton 
June Engineering Consultants, Inc., 

c/o Jeffrey A. Sedloff and Jimmy Dunn 

Ponkan Reserve North Subdivision 

 25.48 +/- Acres 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 51 Single Family Lots 
   Parcel ID #s: 21-20-28-0000-00-003, 21-20-28-0000-00-004, 
     28-20-28-0000-00-003, and 28-20-28-0000-00-004  

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

VICINTY MAP 

Subject 

Property 

249



  

250



 

 

  

251



 

 

  

252



 

 

  

253



 

  

254



 

255


	Top
	1 03-10-15 - PC - Minutes - Approval of the February 10, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes
	PC 02-10-15 Minutes.pdf

	2 03-10-15 - PC - Minutes - Approval of the February 24, 2015 Special Meeting Minutes
	PC 02-24-15_SP Minutes.pdf

	1. 03-10-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Future Land Use - McCarthy McCollough - 1505 W. Kelly Park Road
	McCarthy McCollough - 1505 W Kelly Park Rd -  FLU - PC 03-10-15.pdf

	2. 03-10-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - McCarthy McCollough - 1505 W. Kelly Park Road
	McCullough - 1505 W Kelly Park Rd - ZON - PC 3-10-15.pdf

	3. 03-10-15 - PC - Public Hearing - 2015-2 Administrative Rezoning
	1 2015-2 Administrative Rezoning - PC 03-10-2015.pdf
	2 2015-2 Administrative Rezoning Spreadsheet (A-1 to AG).pdf
	3 2015-2 Administrative Rezoning Case Map.pdf
	4 Case Reports cvr.pdf
	5 Case Reports 1-14.pdf
	6 Case Reports 15-24.pdf

	1. 03-10-15 - PC - Site Plans - Preliminary Development Plan - Rock Springs Estates, south of West Lester Road, east of Vick Road
	1 Rock Springs Estates PDP - PC - 03-10-15.pdf
	2 Rock Springs Estate PDP Site Plan.pdf
	3 Rock Springs Estates PDP Landscape Plans.pdf

	2. 03-10-15 - PC - Site Plans - Final Development Plan/Plat - Ponkan Reserve North, 391 Ponkan Road
	1 Ponkan Reserve North FDP - PC 03.10.15 rev.pdf
	2 Ponkan Reserve North Site Plan_Plat.pdf

	Bottom

